
City of San Antonio

AGENDA
Transportation Advisory Board

Wednesday, November 15, 2023 5:00 PM

Public Safety Headquarters
 Room 1403, 315 South

Santa Rosa, San Antonio,
TX 78207

The Transportation Advisory Board will hold its regular meeting in the Public Safety Headquarters 
Room 1403, 315 South Santa Rosa, San Antonio, TX 78207 beginning at 5:00 PM. Once convened,
the Transportation Advisory Board will take up the following items no sooner than the designated times.

Once a quorum is established, the Transportation Advisory Board shall consider the following:

Approval of Minutes

1. Approval of the minutes from the Transportation Advisory Board meeting on October 25, 2023

Public Comments

2. Public Comments

Briefing and Possible Action on the following items

3. How the TAB can assist the Taxicab Industry 
4. Limousine and Charter chauffeur license requirements
5. 2024 Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Calendar 
6. Items for the next TAB agenda
7. Announcements
8. Adjournment

At any time during the meeting, the Transportation Advisory Board may meet in executive session for
consultation with the City Attorney's Office concerning attorney client matters under Chapter 551 of the
Texas Government Code.

DISABILITY ACCESS STATEMENT
This meeting site is wheelchair accessible. Auxiliary Aids and Services, including Deaf

interpreters, must be requested fortyeight [48] hours prior to the meeting. For assistance, call
(210) 2077268 or 711 Texas Relay Service for the Deaf.

Intérpretes en español estarán disponibles durante la junta del consejo de la ciudad para los asistentes
que lo requieran. También se proveerán intérpretes para los ciudadanos que deseen exponer su punto
de vista al consejo de la ciudad. Para más información, llame al (210) 2077253

Posted on: 11/09/2023  01:28 PM

https://sanantonio.primegov.com/content/images/org/3ad085.jpg


City of San Antonio

AGENDA
Transportation Advisory Board

Wednesday, November 15, 2023 5:00 PM

Public Safety Headquarters
 Room 1403, 315 South

Santa Rosa, San Antonio,
TX 78207

The Transportation Advisory Board will hold its regular meeting in the Public Safety Headquarters 
Room 1403, 315 South Santa Rosa, San Antonio, TX 78207 beginning at 5:00 PM. Once convened,
the Transportation Advisory Board will take up the following items no sooner than the designated times.

Once a quorum is established, the Transportation Advisory Board shall consider the following:

Approval of Minutes

1. Approval of the minutes from the Transportation Advisory Board meeting on October 25, 2023

Public Comments

2. Public Comments

Briefing and Possible Action on the following items

3. How the TAB can assist the Taxicab Industry 
4. Limousine and Charter chauffeur license requirements
5. 2024 Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Calendar 
6. Items for the next TAB agenda
7. Announcements
8. Adjournment

At any time during the meeting, the Transportation Advisory Board may meet in executive session for
consultation with the City Attorney's Office concerning attorney client matters under Chapter 551 of the
Texas Government Code.

DISABILITY ACCESS STATEMENT
This meeting site is wheelchair accessible. Auxiliary Aids and Services, including Deaf

interpreters, must be requested fortyeight [48] hours prior to the meeting. For assistance, call
(210) 2077268 or 711 Texas Relay Service for the Deaf.

Intérpretes en español estarán disponibles durante la junta del consejo de la ciudad para los asistentes
que lo requieran. También se proveerán intérpretes para los ciudadanos que deseen exponer su punto
de vista al consejo de la ciudad. Para más información, llame al (210) 2077253

Posted on: 11/09/2023  01:28 PM



 

TAB Minutes Page 1 of 3 25 October 2023 

Audio records shall be considered the official transcript of this meeting. 

 

 

City of San Antonio Transportation Advisory Board (TAB) 

 

Transportation Advisory Board Minutes 

Wednesday, October 25, 2023 

 

 

Board Members Present:                                                    Board Members Absent: 

George Mery Nick Roberson 

George Garcia         David Strainge 

Robert Gonzales         Erica LaHood 

Eddie Rodriguez          

Ty Edwards 

Javier Tristan 

 

 

Others Present 

Janette Torres-Gloria, Administrative Services Officer SAPD 

Gary Gilbert, Administrative Service Manager SAPD 

James Kopp, Assistant City Attorney 

Joe Herrera, Ground Transportation Unit Supervisor SAPD 

 

Guests 

 

None 

 

Roll Call & Call to Order 

 

      The meeting was called to order by Mr. Mery at 5:06 pm. A Roll Call                     

followed, at least six (6) voting board members were present, and a quorum was established. 

 

1.   Approval of Minutes: 

 

 Approval of Minutes for September 20, 2023, TAB meeting 

 

 T. Edwards moved for approval; R. Gonzales seconded the motion. 

 

 For:  All  Against:  None  Abstentions:  None Minutes Approved  

 

2. Public Comments: 

 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

TAB Minutes Page 2 of 3 25 October 2023 

Audio records shall be considered the official transcript of this meeting. 

 

 

Briefing and Possible Action on the following Items:  
 

3. Moratorium on the Issuance of New Taxicab Permits: 

 

 Mr. Gonzales briefed the TAB on the request by members of the Taxicab industry to not issue 

any new taxicab permits. 

 

 Mr. Gilbert briefed that there were currently 309 company taxicab permits and 70 owner-

operator permits issued. The maximum number of company taxicab permits that could be 

issued is 835, and the maximum number of owner-operator permits is 75. 

  

      Mr. Herrera stated that of the 309 company taxicab permits, only 269 were working as 

taxicabs. 

 

 Mr. Mery suggested that this item be placed on hold until the TAB could figure out what can 

be done to assist the taxicab industry. 

 

 No action was taken for Item 3. 

 

4. How Can the TAB Assist the Taxicab Industry: 

 

 Mr. Mery suggested that information should be gathered on the taxicab industry on loss of 

market share. 

 

 Mr. Gilbert offered to host a TAB sub-committee to work with the taxicab industry on 

developing ways to assist them during this difficult time. 

 

 Mr. Gonzales made a motion to put a moratorium on issuing out new taxicab and that Staff 

should review the “needs and necessity statement in Chapter 33.   

 

 Mr. Kopp informed the TAB that Staff could not prevent taxicab permits from being issued, 

even if the motion passed, and that only City Council can change the City Code. 

 

 Mr. Garcia seconded the motion made by Mr. Gonzales. 

 

 For:  All  Against:  None  Abstentions:  J. Tristan    Motion: Approved 

 

 

5.   Horse Carriage Industry request for Ordinance and Rules Changes: 

 

Mr. Gilbert briefed the TAB on the Council Consideration Request (CCR), which 5 City 

Council members made on abolishing the horse-drawn carriages in San Antonio. He stated 

that until the City Council reviewed the CCR, Staff would not take any recommended changes 

to the City Council concerning the Horse carriage industry. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

TAB Minutes Page 3 of 3 25 October 2023 

Audio records shall be considered the official transcript of this meeting. 

 

 

6. Status of the Electric Vehicle-for-Hire Industry: 

 

Mr. Gilbert briefed the TAB that ten permits were initially issued. Staff has been working with 

each permit holder on bringing on vehicles for the permits by allowing them to either bring a 

vehicle into service or provide Staff with proof of purchase of the vehicles. Mr. Gilbert stated 

that he had to revoke five of those permits due to no vehicle or proof of purchase. 

 

Mr. Tristan stated that business is doing good and well received in San Antonio and that his 

other vehicles that he has purchased are in transit. 

 

7.   Items for the Next TAB Agenda: 

 

• How can the TAB assist the Taxicab Industry 

• Limousine/Charter City Permitting Issues 

 

  

7. Announcements:     

 

 None 

 

8. Adjournment: 

  

 Motion made by Mr. Gonzales and seconded by Mr. Edwards  

 

 For:  All     Against:  None       

 

 

 Meeting adjourned at 6:25 pm 

 

 

 

_________________________                          _____________________________ 

George Mery Gary J. Gilbert 

TAB Vice-Chairperson Administrative Services Manager 

                                                                             Recorder/Transcriber of Minutes                                
                                                                                                                                                                                           



CHAPTER 33 - VEHICLES FOR HIRE 

 

Effective November 21, 2022 

 ARTICLE I.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
 

DIVISION 4. DRIVERS PERMIT 
 
Sec. 33-039. Drivers permit. 
 

In accordance with the terms and provisions of this chapter, every person before 
driving a vehicle for hire within the city, shall obtain a drivers permit.  A driver’s 
permit shall be valid for 48 months from the date of issuance. 
 

Sec. 33-040. Drivers permit authorized companies 
 

(a) A holder may not employ, contract with, or otherwise allow a person to drive a 
vehicle for hire owned or operated by the holder unless such person has a valid 
drivers permit and has an authorized company listed on the drivers permit. 
 
(b) A driver shall not drive for or contract with a company that is not listed as an 
authorized company on his or her drivers permit. 

 
Sec. 33-041.  Investigation of applicant; records to be considered; qualifications; 
issuance and denial. 
 

(a)  A holder may not allow a person who does not have a current and valid driver’s 
permit to operate a vehicle for hire. If a holder wants to hire a person without a 
driver’s permit, or provide for the renewal of a drivers permit, the holder is 
responsible for assisting such person in obtaining a drivers permit. The holder shall 
conduct an investigation at no expense to the City concerning the character, 
experience and qualifications of the applicants to determine whether or not that 
applicant is fit, willing, and able to operate a vehicle for hire in a manner consistent 
with the general welfare of the public and in accordance with the requirements of 
this chapter, rules and regulation established by the director, and all other 
applicable laws, rules and regulation.  
 
(b) The holder shall confirm, obtain, and maintain evidence for submission to the 
city upon request pursuant to Sec. 33-055, that at the time the driver submits the 
application to the City, and by providing the applicant with an enrollee/transfer slip 
provided by the City that has been signed by the authorized representative of the 
holder. The holder is attesting that the applicant is in compliance with the following: 
 

(1) Is 18 years of age or older; 
 



CHAPTER 33 - VEHICLES FOR HIRE 

 

Effective November 21, 2022 

(2) Is a citizen of the United States of America by birth or naturalization, or 
if an alien, submit evidence of legal residence in the United States and 
legal right to engage in   employment herein; 

 
(3) Possesses a valid Texas driver’s license required for the class of vehicle 

to be operated by the applicant as required by Secs. 521.081 and 
521.082 of the Transportation Code or possess an active Department of 
Defense ID card and a current and valid driver’s license from another 
state. 

 
(4) Is able to read and speak the English language; 
 
(5) Has been added to or remains on the permit holder’s insurance policy; 
 
(6) Has completed a driver’s training program that has been approved under 
Chapter 33-007 of this chapter;  
 
(6) Has a negative drug test as required under Sec. 33-029 of this Chapter: 
 
(8) Has successfully completed any other training outlined in the rules and 
regulations established by the director; 
 
(9) Has provided a copy of the applicants DD-214, if the applicant has prior 
military service; 
 

(c)  An applicant at the time of application and at their own expense shall: 
 

(1) Provide the director with the applicant’s residence, street, address, and 
a valid phone number; an applicant shall notify the director of any changed 
thereto within five business days of the change; 

 
(2) Execute an authorization in writing for the release by the city to an 
organization or entity of any and all information which the city may have 
concerning the applicant, including but not limited to criminal history 
information, and a release of the city for all liability which may result from 
the furnishing of such to an organization;  

 
(3) Execute an authorization in writing for the release to the city by any 
organization or entity of any and all information, without limitation, which the 
organization or entity may have concerning the applicant, and a release of 
the organization or entity and the city from all liability which may result from 
the furnishing of such by the organization or entity; 

 
(4) Pay any fees required by this chapter. 



CHAPTER 33 - VEHICLES FOR HIRE 

 

Effective November 21, 2022 

 
(d) An applicant may be issued a drivers permit where the applicant: 
 

 (1) Has complied with Sec. 33-041(a), (b), and (c); and 
 

(2) Has paid for and complied with the requirements for a fingerprint criminal 
history background check, approved by the director. 

 

(e)  An application for a drivers permit shall be denied where the applicant: 
 
(1)   is under indictment for or has been convicted of criminal homicide 
including murder, capital murder and manslaughter, but excluding criminally 
negligent homicide; 
 
(2)   Has been convicted or has been placed on community supervision, 
including but not limited to probation and deferred adjudication, of four or 
more moving violations of the traffic laws of this or any other city or state 
within the 12-month period immediately preceding the date of application; 
 
(3)   Has falsified or materially altered or omitted pertinent information in any 
governmental record, including an application for a drivers permit; or 
 
(4)   Has not met the requirement for obtaining a drivers permit as set forth 
in this division. 
 

(f) An application for a drivers permit may also be denied where the applicant is 
under Indictment, is currently on community supervision, including but not limited 
to probation and deferred adjudication, or has been convicted of any of the 
offenses listed in Sec. 33-010 of this chapter. 
 
(g) If the director disapproves an application for a drivers permit, then the director 
shall notify the applicant, in accordance with Sec. 33-072 of this chapter, of the 
decision and of the basis for the decision. 
 
(h) Upon the applicant receiving notice of the decision of the director, the applicant 
may appeal such decision as provided by and in accordance with Sec. 33-033 of 
this chapter. 
 
 
 
(i) In the case where an applicant has a background of past criminal activity, drivers 
permit denial based solely thereon is warranted if and only if the past criminal 
activity is directly related to the duties and responsibilities of a driver as more fully 
described in this chapter. Accordingly, the factors set forth in Sec. 33-010 of this 
chapter shall be considered in making a determination of job-relatedness. In this 



CHAPTER 33 - VEHICLES FOR HIRE 

 

Effective November 21, 2022 

regard, however, it shall be the applicant's responsibility to secure and provide 
proof that applicant has otherwise maintained a record of steady employment and 
good conduct, that applicant has supported applicant's dependents, and that 
applicant has paid all outstanding court costs, supervision fees, fines and 
restitution as may have been ordered in any criminal cases. 
 
(j) Should the hearing officer affirm the decision of the director to deny the 
application for a drivers permit, an applicant shall not be eligible for re-application 
for a period 12 months from the date of the denial, or in the case of an appeal, 
from the date the appeal is affirmed. 

 

 
Sec. 33-042. Revocation and suspension of drivers permit. 
 

(a)   A driver’s permit may be revoked for any of the following: 
 
(1)   Suspension or revocation of the state driver’s license; 
 
(2)   Two or more suspensions pursuant to the provisions of this chapter 
within any twelve month period; 
 
(3)   Three or more convictions or adjudications of the same provision of this 
chapter or rules and regulations established by the director, within any 
twelve month period; 
 
(4)   Four or more convictions or placements on community supervision, 
including but not limited to probation and deferred adjudication, of any 
moving violation of the traffic laws of this or any other city or state within any 
twelve month period; 
 
(5)   Has been convicted or placed on community supervision, including but 
not limited to probation and deferred adjudication, for any felony since the 
date of issuance of the drivers permit; 
 
(6)   Revocation of felony community supervision, probation, parole or other 
supervision since the date of issuance of the drivers permit;  
 
(7)   Falsification or material alteration or omission of pertinent information 
in any governmental record, including an application for a driver permit or 
for renewal thereof; 

(7) Failure to pay a monetary penalty required to be paid for a violation of 
this chapter within 30 days of the date said penalty becomes due; 



CHAPTER 33 - VEHICLES FOR HIRE 

 

Effective November 21, 2022 

(8)  A positive drug test as outlined in Sec. 33-029 of this chapter, on or off 
duty, or a positive drug or alcohol test while on duty; or 

 
(10) Failure to keep and maintain current documentation as outlined in this 
chapter. 

 
(b)   A drivers permit may be revoked or suspended for a period not to exceed 60 
days,  when the director has determined it is in the best interest of the public to do 
so, or where the driver: 
 

(1)   Since the date of issuance of the drivers permit, has been convicted or 
has been placed on community supervision, including but not limited to 
probation and deferred adjudication, for violation of any city, state or federal 
law where said violation relates directly to the duties and responsibilities of 
the driver including, but not limited to, the violations listed in Sec. 33-010 of 
this chapter; 
 
(2)   Since the date of issuance of the drivers permit has been indicted for 
homicide, including murder, capital murder and manslaughter, but 
excluding criminally negligent homicide, or for any of the offenses listed in 
Sec. 33-010 of this chapter;  or 
 
(3)   Has failed to comply with this chapter. 

 
(c)   A suspension of a drivers permit does not affect the expiration date of that 
drivers permit. 
 
(d)   If the director determines that good cause exists pursuant to this chapter, to 
revoke or suspend a driver’s permit, then the director shall notify the driver of his 
decision, in accordance with Sec. 33-072 of this chapter. 
 
(e) Upon receiving notice of the decision of the director, the driver may appeal such 
decision as provided by and in accordance with Sec. 33-003 of this chapter. 

 
Sec. 33-043. Reinstatement of drivers permit. 

 
Upon revocation of a drivers permit, a driver shall not be eligible to re-apply for a 
period of 12 months from the date of revocation, or in the case of an appeal, from 
the date the appeal is affirmed. 

 
 
 
Sec. 33-044. Display of permit. 

 



CHAPTER 33 - VEHICLES FOR HIRE 

 

Effective November 21, 2022 

A driver shall at all times keep his/her drivers permit in the driver's possession and 
shall allow the director, a peace officer, and any other person authorized to enforce 
the provisions of this chapter, to examine said permit upon request. 

 
 
Sec. 33-045. License file to be kept. 

 
A driver permit file shall be kept and maintained, in a location determined by the 
director, of all persons to whom such permit have been issued.  

 
 

Sec. 33-046 . Voidance of drivers permit. 
 

(a)   If the license required by the state for the class of vehicle operated by a driver 
is suspended or revoked, then the drivers permit issued under this chapter 
automatically becomes void. 
 
(b)   A driver shall, within three days of any expiration, suspension or revocation of 
the driver's state license, so notify the director and the holder for whom he/she 
drives and surrender his drivers permit to the director. 

 
Sec. 33-047. Driver lists to be furnished and maintained. 

 
Within 10 calendar days of the director's request, a permit holder shall furnish a current 
list of permitted drivers and the driver’s current phone number(s).  
 

Sec. 33-048 reserved 
 

Sec. 33-049.  Transfer of drivers permit 
 
 A driver may transfer from one permitted company to another; however, a driver 

shall not drive for a new company prior to the listing of this new company on the 
drivers permit.  

 
(a) A driver shall not be eligible to transfer between companies until the driver 
has: 

 
(1) Provided an enrollee/transfer slip, on a form approved by the director, 
that has been signed by the authorized representative of the hiring / 
contracting company(s), that attests to the drivers qualifications under 
Chapter 33-041; and 
 
(2) Paid all fees required by this chapter. 
 



CHAPTER 33 - VEHICLES FOR HIRE 

 

Effective November 21, 2022 

ARTICLE V. LIMOUSINE SERVICES 

 
Sec. 33-525. Supplemental drivers permit. 
 
If a limousine service experiences peak demand periods requiring more drivers than are 
currently permitted, the holder may request supplemental drivers by submitting a written 
application for a supplemental drivers permit, which shall state the reason why a 
supplemental driver is needed. Supplemental drivers: 
 

(a) Shall possess a valid Texas driver’s license as outlined in Sec 33-041 (3); 
 
(b) Shall possess a valid driver’s permit from the City of San Antonio, another 

Texas city, or has a Texas Department of Public Safety license designated for 
the type of vehicle they will be operating; 

 
(c) May not be used for more than 10 consecutive days; 
 
(d) Every individual driver may not be used for more than a total of 30 days in a 

calendar year; 
 
(e) A supplemental driver’s permit shall automatically expire if the driver operates 

in violation of Secs. 33-524 and 33-52, and the driver shall be in violation of 
Sec. 33-006 (a) of this chapter. 

                         



CHAPTER 33 - VEHICLES FOR HIRE 

 

Effective November 21, 2022 

ARTICLE VII. TOUR SERVICE AND CHARTER 

SERVICE 

 
Sec. 33-725. Supplemental drivers permit. 
 
If a service experiences peak demand periods requiring more drivers than are currently 
permitted, the holder may request supplemental drivers by submitting a written 
application for a supplemental drivers permit, which shall state the reason why a 
supplemental driver is needed.  Supplemental drivers: 
 

(a) Shall possess a valid Texas driver’s license as outlined in Sec 33-041 (3); 
 

(b) Shall possess a valid driver’s permit from the City of San Antonio, another 
Texas city, or has a Texas Department of Public Safety license designated for 
the type of vehicle they will be operated; 

 
(c) May not be used for more than 10 consecutive days; 

 
(d) Every individual driver may not be used for more than a total of 30 days in a 
calendar year; 

 
(e) A supplemental driver that is not in compliance with Sec. 33-724, Sec 33-725 
of this chapter shall be in violation of Sec. 33-006 (a) of this chapter. 

 
 



 

 

City of San Antonio Transportation Advisory Board (TAB) 

 

Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Dates 

4th Wednesday of Every Month* 

Public Safety Headquarters - Training Room 1403, 315 South Santa Rosa, 

San Antonio Texas 
 

 

2024 Meeting Dates 
 

 

• January 24, 2024 

 

• February 28, 2024 

 

• March 27, 2024 

 

• April – No Meeting 

 

• May 22, 2024    

 

• June 26, 2024 

 

• July 24, 2024 

 

• August 28, 2024 

 

• September 25, 2024 

 

• October 23, 2024 

 

• *November 20, 2023 

 

• December – No Meeting 
 

* 3rd Wednesday in November due to Thanksgiving 

 

 


	TAB Minutes 25 Oct  2023 - Draft
	Chapter 33, Article I - Drivers Permit
	Chapter 33, Article V - Limousines
	Chapter 33, Article VII - Tour & Charters
	TAB Meeting Schedule 2024

